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Managing Director’s Statement
Key achievements
I am pleased to report on another successful
year, albeit that the year to 31 March 2018
saw lower levels of turnover and profit after
tax, but higher operating profit and profit
before tax, than the preceding year.

Towards the end of the year, work completed
on two projects — the redevelopment
of a former hotel in Muswell Hill into 18
apartments and the construction of 3
residential properties near our head office
in London N2; both projects were fully let
within the first quarter of this financial year.

We paid a final distribution of 1p per share
in respect of year end 31 March 2017, which
was paid during this financial year. We are
pleased to continue the trend of distributing
a share of profits to our shareholders by
recommending a final dividend of 1p per
share.

Planning permission was obtained for
the building of a mixed residential and
commercial development in London N2,
and work commenced on a conversion to
apartments of a property in London N10.

During the year, the Group sold its residual
interest in two properties in London and
purchased and sold a mixed-use property
asset in London NW9. The disposals
generated total revenues of £2.8 million.

Financial review
Group revenue for the year to 31 March
2018 of £2.9 million comprised sales of
properties, rental income and management
fees. However, it was below the £13.0 million
reported for the preceding year, in which
there was more activity.

Gross profit of £0.3 million was below the
£2.5 million for the year to 31 March 2017,
but operating profit increased from £1.9
million to £2.7 million, reflecting the gain
on revaluation of investment properties,
including those transferred this year
from trading stock. However, it is worth
noting that we are extremely selective
on transactions until the outlook on the
economy in general and the property sector
specifically, show signs of strengthening.
As a result of the completion of the two
projects mentioned above, both properties
were transferred from stock into investment
properties and were valued at a gain to the
Group of £3.8 million. As a result, trading
stock has decreased in value from £9.3
million at 31 March 2017 to £5.0 million at
31 March 2018.
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The Statement of Financial Position shows
gearing at 31 March 2018 of 45%, which is
consistent with the long term gearing ratio
for the Group (31 March 2017: 12%).

The directors continue to consider the
acquisition and cancellation of these shares
as appropriate if it enhances the value of the
remaining shares in issue.

I am pleased to report that our net asset
value (NAV) rose from £19.9 million
(equivalent to 129 pence per share) at 31
March 2017 to £21.6 million (equivalent to
145 pence per share) at 31 March 2018. This
is an 11.6% increase, albeit that for the third
consecutive year there were fewer shares
in issue at the year-end than 12 months
previously, as a result of buybacks and
cancellation of shares.

Due to the small increase in the share price
over the year, total shareholder returns
for the year increased by 6.4% (2017: 2.7%
decrease).

Whilst we will continue to seek out value
adding opportunities, the generally negative
environment with little current opportunity
suggests that it would be prudent for
the Board to review the Company’s cost
base, including the value of maintaining
the Company’s AIM quotation. A further
announcement will be made in due course.

Continuing the theme of purchasing our own
shares — in the prior year there had been
two transactions totalling 193,000 shares
— in the year to 31 March 2018, we made 8
buy-backs, totalling 460,000 shares.

After the year end, we successfully
negotiated a new £16.5 million revolving
credit facility with Lloyds Bank, secured on
certain assets owned by the Group.
Outlook
I repeat the statement in 2017’s full-year
results that the market appears to us to be
constrained by an economic outlook which
in turn is affected by political conditions at
home, in the EU, and worldwide. I believe
that this has created a cautious environment,
verging on stagnation which may continue for
some time.

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
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Strategic Report
The directors present their
strategic report on the affairs
of the Company and the Group
together with the financial
statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group comprise
property trading, property refurbishment
(including redevelopment), property
investment and property fund management.
Review of business and future prospects
The Group’s key achievements, financial
review and future prospects are detailed
in the Managing Director’s Statement.
The results for the year are set out in
detail on page 17.
A final dividend of 1p per share (2017: 1p)
is proposed. During the year, no interim
dividend was paid (2017: nil).
Key performance indicators
The Group’s key performance indicators
are net asset value per share and total
shareholder return and are detailed in the
financial review section of the Managing
Director’s Statement.
The directors noted a small increase in the
year-end share price from 55.0p to 57.5p in
the year to 31 March 2018 which, together
with a 1p per share dividend paid in the year,
gave a positive shareholder return of 6.4%,
up from a negative of 2.7% in the year to 31
March 2017.
Net asset value (NAV) per share is calculated
by dividing net assets per the consolidated
statement of financial position by the number
of shares in issue at that date. The NAV
increased from 129p to 145p per share in
the year. Total shareholder return measures
the return to shareholders from share price
movements supplemented by other returns
such as dividends.
Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties that
could potentially have an impact on the
Group’s performance are detailed below.
Business risk
Safeland operates in the property market,
which over the years has always been liable
to price fluctuations, dependent upon the
state of the UK economy. In the event that
there was a drop in the value of property
throughout the country, this would obviously
affect the properties held by Safeland at that
time, but would also present an opportunity
for buying at distinctly lower levels than exist
at present. The Group mitigates the risk of
downturns in property values by ensuring
diversity within its property portfolio.

It is conceivable that the impending exit of
the UK from the EU may affect tax rates
that exist at present, which would erode the
margins that Safeland is able to attain on
its trades and may adversely impact upon
property values.
Over the years, Safeland has added value
by obtaining change of permitted use of
properties. Adverse changes to the planning
requirements could affect this methodology.
Financial risk
In order to finance the purchase of properties
that Safeland trades in, it uses bank loans
with variable interest rates that track LIBOR.
Increases in the LIBOR rate will adversely
affect the profit that Safeland is able to make.
This has been substantially mitigated by the
use of interest rate and caps.
The determining factor as to how much
Safeland is able to buy at any one time is
limited by cash and there may be times
when opportunities are not able to be taken
advantage of as all available monies have
been allocated elsewhere. Strict financial
controls are in operation to ensure that
monies cannot be expended above the
available limits.
Financial risk management policies are
described in note 27 to these financial
statements, and the accounting policies
notes confirm that the directors consider
the Company to be a going concern.
The Managing Director’s Statement includes
further analysis of the business performance
and further prospects of the Group.
Approved by the Board of Directors and
signed on behalf of the Board.

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
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“We are operating in a
cautious environment,
which may continue
for some time.”
Larry Lipman
Managing Director
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their
report and financial
statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018

Results, future developments and dividends
The results of the Group are discussed in the Managing Director’s Statement and the Strategic
Report. Further details are shown in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 17 and the
related notes.
The directors’ strategy and plans for the future development of the Group are set out in the
Managing Director’s Statement and the Strategic Report.
The Board has proposed a final dividend for the financial year to 31 March 2018 of 1p per share
(2017: 1p) payable to shareholders on the register on 31 August 2018.
Directors
The directors who have served since 1 April 2017 are as follows:
Larry Lipman
Errol Lipman
Edward Young (Non-Executive)		
Larry Lipman retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

Mr Larry Lipman
Managing Director

Mr Errol Lipman
Executive Director

Mr Edward Young
Non-Executive Director

Mr L G Lipman (aged 61) is the Managing
Director of Safeland plc with many years’
experience in the property sector. His
primary responsibility is that of negotiating
acquisitions and disposals and liaising with
various professionals.

Mr E A Lipman (aged 59) is an Executive
Director whose primary responsibility is
dealing with the Group’s residential portfolio
and the numerous residential agents.

Mr E G Young (aged 75) qualified as a solicitor
in 1968 after graduating from University
College London and has extensive experience
in commercial property law and practice.
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Directors’ Report
Directors’ interests in shares
The directors who were in office at 31 March 2018 had the following beneficial interests in the
ordinary shares of the Company during the year and at the year-end:
At 31 March 2018
Number of 5p
ordinary shares

At 31 March 2017
Number of 5p
ordinary shares

L G Lipman

261,128

261,128

E A Lipman

692,442

692,442

Mr L G Lipman and Mr E A Lipman each own one-third of the share capital of Safeland
Holdings (2008) Corporation (“SHC”), a corporation incorporated in Panama. SHC owned
10,854,386 (2017: 10,854,386) ordinary shares in the company, representing 72.81% (2017:
70.63%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31 March 2018.
There have been no changes in the directors’ interests in shares since the year-end.
The directors are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group. No director
has yet benefited from any increase in the value of share capital since issuance of options, as
no options have yet been exercised.
Directors’ interests in options over the equity share capital of the company at 31 March 2018
were as follows:
At 31
March
2018

At 31
March
2017

Granted

L G Lipman 8,094,054

–

– 8,094,054

9.25p 28.09.2014 27.09.2021

E A Lipman 6,383,621

–

– 6,383,621

9.25p 28.09.2014 27.09.2021

Lapsed

Exercise
price

Exercisable
from

Exercisable
to

Other substantial shareholdings
Apart from the shareholdings of the directors and of SHC as outlined above, as at 31 March
2018, the Company had not been notified of any other shareholdings which constitute three
per cent or more of the total issued ordinary shares of the Company.
Financial instruments
The Group’s policy on financial instruments is stated in note 27 to these financial statements.
Post-balance sheet events
In April 2018 the Group negotiated a renewal of the group’s revolving credit facilities with its
principal lender. This will provide the Group with a £16,500,000 facility through to December
2020.
During June 2018, a property included in stock at a value of £971k at the year-end was sold
for a small profit.
During the three months to June 2018, all three houses in the Edeleny Close development and
all 18 apartments in the Raglan Hall development were let to third parties at a total annual
rental of £525,000.
Capital structure
Outstanding options over the share capital of the Company are held by members of the Board.
No new share options were issued in the year. See also directors’ interests above.
The shares of the Company are traded on AIM, a market operated by the London Stock
Exchange. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.
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There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which
are both governed by the general provisions of the articles of association and prevailing
legislation. The directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the Company’s
shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.
No person has special rights of control over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares
are fully paid. With regard to appointment and replacement of directors, the Company is
governed by its articles of association, the Companies Act 2006 and related legislation. The
articles may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders. The powers of directors
are described in the main board terms of reference, copies of which are available on request,
and in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 12.
Political and charitable donations
The Group made no charitable or political donations in the year (2017: £nil).
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
The directors are responsible for preparing the Managing Director’s Statement, Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law the directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and the company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland’. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
and profit or loss of the company and group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:
— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
— make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
— for the consolidated financial statements, state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;
— for the company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;
— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors confirm that:
— so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
company’s auditor is unaware; and
— the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditor is aware of that information.
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report in accordance with applicable
law and regulations. The directors consider the annual report and the financial statements,
taken as a whole, provides the information necessary to assess the company’s performance,
business model and strategy and is fair, balanced and understandable.
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Directors’ Report
Company
Registration
no. 2012015

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
Conflicts of interest
Under the articles of association of the company and in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, a director must avoid a situation where he has, or can have, a direct or
indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with, the company’s interests. However,
the directors may authorise conflicts and potential conflicts, as they deem appropriate. As a
safeguard, only directors who have no interest in the matter being considered will be able to
take the relevant decision, and the directors will be able to impose limits or conditions when
giving authorisation if they think this is appropriate. During the financial year ended 31 March
2018, the directors have authorised no such conflicts or potential conflicts in accordance with
the above procedures.
Statement of disclosure of information to the auditor
— so far as each of the directors currently in office is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware; and
— each of the directors has taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a director to
make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s
auditor is aware of that information.
Auditor
The auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office
and a resolution that they be reappointed will be proposed at the annual general meeting.
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
This report describes how the Board
has applied the principles of good
governance relating to directors’
remuneration during the year ended
31 March 2018.
Remuneration committee
The duties of the Remuneration Committee
are performed by all 3 members of the board
as a whole. The Committee determines on
behalf of the shareholders, the Company’s
policy for the level of remuneration for the
executive directors.
Remuneration policy on executive
directors’ remuneration
Executive remuneration packages are
designed to attract, motivate and retain
directors of the high calibre required
and to reward them for enhancing value
to shareholders. The performance
measurement of both executive and nonexecutive directors and the determination
of their annual remuneration package is
undertaken by the Committee.

There are three main elements of the
remuneration package for executive directors
and senior managers:
1. Basic salary is determined by the
Remuneration Committee at the beginning
of each year and when an individual
changes position or responsibility.
Appropriate salary levels are set by
reference to the performance, experience
and responsibilities of each individual
concerned and having regard to the
prevailing market conditions.
2. Performance related bonuses are
assessed annually and are based on a
combination of individual and corporate
performances during the preceding
financial year. During the year under
review and the prior year, the directors
did not receive bonuses.

It is the Company’s policy that its executive
directors may take up outside directorships
where it is considered that the appointment
would not impinge on their employment with
the Company. Individuals may retain any
remuneration received from such services.
Directors’ service contracts
Mr L G Lipman and Mr E A Lipman hold
rolling service contracts that expired in
August 2013 but continue thereafter unless
12 months’ written notice is given. Mr E G
Young holds a rolling service contract dated
20 May 2008 with a notice period of three
months.
The directors’ service contracts contain no
provision for fixed termination payments.

3. Share options
The remuneration package for executive
directors also includes benefits in kind such
as cars, fuel and health insurance.

Share price
The Company has a single class of ordinary
shares listed on the AIM market of the
London Stock Exchange. High and low
prices for the year were 61.5p and 52.0p
respectively (2017: 64.0p and 38.0p) and
the market price of the shares at 31 March
2018 was 57.5p (2017: 55.0p).

Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:
Salary
and fees
£’000

Benefits
in kind
£’000

2018
Total
£’000

Salary
and fees
£’000

Benefits
in kind
£’000

2017
Total
£’000

L G Lipman

204

42

246

199

59

258

E A Lipman

204

53

257

199

49

248

20

-

20

20

-

20

428

95

523

418

108

526

Executive directors

Non-executive director
E G Young

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
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Corporate Governance
Corporate governance statement
Companies that have shares traded on the Alternative Investment
Market (AIM) are not required to comply with the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”). Whilst the Group has not adopted
the Code, the Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and draws on best practice including those
aspects of the Code it considers appropriate and practicable for a
company of this size. In line with a focus of cost effectiveness across
the Group, the corporate governance processes in place balance
the need to ensure that the Board carries out its responsibilities
effectively with the need to do so cost-effectively. After the year end,
the Group opted to adopt, as far as is practicable given the Group’s
size and nature of business, the 10 principles as set out in the Quoted
Companies Alliance Corporate Governance Code.
Directors
During the year ended 31 March 2018 the Group was controlled by its
Board of Directors which consisted of two executive directors and one
non-executive director. Mr L G Lipman is managing director.
Each member of the Board is subject to the re-election provisions of
the Articles of Association, which requires them to offer themselves
for re-election at least once every three years. In the event of a
proposal to appoint a new director, this would be discussed at a full
Board meeting, with each member being given the opportunity to
meet the individual concerned prior to any formal decision being
taken.
Due to the small size of the Board, it is considered inappropriate to
establish a Nomination Committee. Consequently, these duties are
performed by the Board as a whole.
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr E G Young acts as the Company’s independent non-executive
director. Mr Young is available to meet shareholders on request and to
ensure that the Board is aware of shareholder concerns not resolved
through existing mechanisms for investor communication.
The non-executive director constructively challenges and helps
develop proposals on strategy through attendance at Board meetings
and regular dialogue with the executive directors. He also ensures
that robust internal controls exist and monitors management
performance against agreed goals and objectives.
Directors’ remuneration
The executive directors’ remuneration consists of a package of basic
salary, benefits in kind and bonuses, which are linked to corporate
and individual performance achievements and the levels of each are
determined by the Board. The statement of remuneration policy and
details of each director’s remuneration are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report above.

Internal control
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has in place
a system of internal control. In this context, control is defined as
those policies and processes established to ensure that business
objectives are achieved cost effectively, assets and shareholder value
are safeguarded, and laws, regulations and policies are complied
with. Controls can provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
that risks are identified and adequately managed to achieve business
objectives and to minimise material errors, losses and fraud or
breaches of laws and regulations. The system of internal control
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.
Going concern
The directors report that, based on the Group’s budgets and financial
projections to 31 March 2020 and the renewal of the Group’s revolving
credit facility with Lloyds Bank plc to December 2020, they have
satisfied themselves that the business is a going concern. The Board
has a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have
adequate resources and facilities to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and therefore the accounts are prepared on
the going concern basis.
Auditor
The Board is responsible for the relationship with the Group’s auditor,
the in-depth review of the Group’s financial reports, internal controls
and any other reports that the Group may circularise. This includes
a review of the cost effectiveness of the audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group.
The Board monitors the non-audit services being provided to the
Group by its external auditors on a regular basis to check that
these services do not impair their independence or objectivity. Prior
approval of the Board is required for activities which may be perceived
to be in conflict with the role of the external auditor.
Details of the amounts paid to the external auditor during the year
for audit and other services are set out in the notes to the financial
statements. All fees are subject to the scrutiny of the non-executive
director.
Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board.

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018

Safeland plc

Report & Financial Statements 2018

13

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Safeland plc
Opinion
Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified
We have audited the group financial statements of Safeland plc for
the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.
In our opinion the group financial statements:
— give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31
March 2018 and of it’s profit for the year then ended;
— have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union; and
— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the group financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard
as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
— the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the group financial statements is not appropriate; or
— the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Overview of our audit approach
— Overall materiality: £578,000 which represented 2% of the Group’s
total assets assessed at the planning stage
— Key audit matters for the Group were identified as the carrying
value of development property and carrying value of investment
properties
— A full scope audit has been performed in respect of all UK trading
entities and the parent Company.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those that had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Safeland plc

Report & Financial Statements 2018

14

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Safeland plc
Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Carrying value of development property

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

Development property is required to be
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value under IAS2 and is a significant element
of the Group’s statement of financial position
and of the results for the year.

reading the accounting policy for compliance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and that
application by the Group is consistent with the stated policy;

There is a risk that management may
influence the judgements and estimates used
in appraising development property values
and realisation during the reporting year.
We therefore identified the carrying value
of development property as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

agreement of brought forward documentation and testing a sample of additions during the
year to third party evidence to ensure they have been capitalised in line with IAS2;
testing expected future property sales values to management appraisals, and third party
valuations where applicable;
assessing management’s forecasts of expected costs to complete the development to
determine development properties recognised at lower of cost and net realisable value; and
considering evidence obtained from other audit procedures which would indicate any
material inconsistency with the accounting adopted.
The Group’s accounting policy on revenue recognition and development properties is shown
in note 1 to the financial statements and related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17.
Key observations
As a result of the audit procedures we performed and, after considering management’s
disclosures of the judgements applied by them, we have concluded that development
properties have been appropriately recognised in accordance with IAS2.

Carrying value of investment properties

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

Several properties developed by the
Group have been re-classified and held as
investment properties, rather than being
developed and sold.

reading the accounting policy for compliance with IAS40 applicable to holding investment
properties.

Management’s policy is to carry investment
property at fair value. Properties transferred
from trading properties are fair valued at
the date of transfer with the difference being
recognised in the income statement. The
valuation of investment property requires
significant judgement and estimates
to be made by management. Any input
inaccuracies or unreasonable bases used in
these judgements could result in a material
misstatement of the income statement and
balance sheet.
There is also a risk that management may
influence the significant judgements and
estimates in respect of property valuations
in order to achieve property valuation and
other performance targets to meet market
expectations.
We therefore identified the carrying value
of investment properties as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

testing the directors’ basis of valuation of investment properties to available third party
evidence of valuation and rental yields;
testing that changes in corporate tax and VAT treatment have been appropriately applied in
accordance with legislation for assets re-designated as investment property; and
an evaluation and testing of the valuation methods used by management, including appraisal
against external benchmarks or valuation reports where appropriate.
The Group’s accounting policy on investment properties, including valuation, is shown in
note 1 and related disclosures are included in notes 14 and 27.
Key observations
As a result of the audit procedures performed we have concluded that investment property
has been recognised appropriately in accordance with IAS40.
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Our application of materiality
We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit work and in evaluating the results of that work.
Materiality was determined as follows:
Materiality Measure

Group

Financial statements as a whole

£578,000 which was 2% of total assets assessed at the planning
stage of the audit. This benchmark is considered the most
appropriate because total assets represent a stable benchmark
consistent with the Group’s principal activities.
Materiality for the current year is higher than the level that we
determined for the year ended 31 March 2017 to reflect the increased
size of assets within the Group.

Performance materiality used to drive the extent of our testing

75% of financial statement materiality.

Specific materiality

We determined a lower level of specific materiality of £29,000 for
certain areas such as directors’ remuneration and related party
transactions.

Communication of misstatements to the audit committee

£29,000 and misstatements below that threshold that, in our view,
warrant reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our group audit approach was a risk-based approach founded on a
thorough understanding of the Group’s business, its environment and
risk profile and in particular included:
— evaluation by the group audit team of identified components to
assess the significance of that component and to determine the
planned audit response based on a measure of materiality. The
group financial statements are a consolidation of all of the active
UK entities which have existed all year, and on which full scope
audit procedures are performed by the group audit team;
— recognition that the Group is organised into two main operating
segments: property development and property investment. We
substantively tested a sample of transactions within each of these
streams, and ensured that properties were appropriately allocated
between the major;
— undertaking substantive testing on significant transactions,
balances and disclosures, the extent of which was based on various
factors such as our overall assessment of the control environment,
the design effectiveness of controls over individual systems and the
management of specific risks.
— 100% of Group activity is included within the scope of full audit
procedures.
This approach is consistent with that adopted for the year ended 31
March 2017.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the report, set
out on pages 1 to 12, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the Group financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the group financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
of the group financial statements or a material misstatement of
the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Safeland plc
Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
is unmodified.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit:
— the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the group financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial
statements; and
— the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report under the Companies
Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified material misstatements in the Managing Director’s
Statement, Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:
— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or
— we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the group
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of group financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the group financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the group financial
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the group financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these group financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the group
financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.
Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial
statements of Safeland Plc for the year ended 31 March 2018. That
report includes details of the parent Company key audit matters; how
we applied the concept of materiality in planning and performing our
audit; and an overview of the scope of our audit.

Philip Westerman BA, ACA
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London
20 August 2018
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Year Ended 31 March 2018

Note

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Continuing

3

2,900

12,695

Discontinued

3

–

277

2,900

12,972

Cost of sales

4

(2,595)

(10,517)

305

2,455

5

(1,577)

(1,721)

14

3,833

459

74

694

Revenue

Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Gain on revaluation of investment properties
Profit on disposal of investment property

11

5

25

31

Operating profit

2,671

1,923

Operating profit – continuing

2,671

1,877

–

46

2,671

1,923

Dividend from investment
Share of results of associate

15

Operating profit – discontinued

Finance income

6

148

554

Finance costs

7

(426)

(448)

2,393

2,029

Tax

9

(247)

293

Profit for the financial year attributable to owners of the parent Company

8

2,146

2,322

Basic earnings per share

10

14.25p

15.27p

Diluted earnings per share

10

7.88p

8.35p

Profit before tax

The notes on pages 22 to 44 form part of these financial statements.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,146

2,322

(104)

(30)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

(104)

(30)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of the parent company

2,042

2,292

Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Fair value losses on available-for-sale financial assets

The notes on pages 22 to 44 form part of these financial statements.
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Company Registration no. 2012015

Year Ended 31 March 2018

Note

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

13

1,789

1,885

Investment properties

14

14,762

1,182

Investment in associate

15

127

127

Available-for-sale investments

16

698

802

17,376

3,996

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trading properties

17

5,018

9,348

Trade and other receivables

18

9,238

9,209

Cash and cash equivalents

19

1,066

5,280

Total current assets

15,322

23,837

Total assets

32,698

27,833

Current liabilities
Bank loans and overdrafts

20

10,455

7,639

Trade and other payables

21

470

232

Corporation tax payable

140

–

Total current liabilities

11,065

7,871

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

20

–

–

Deferred income tax liabilities

22

74

32

74

32

Total liabilities

11,139

7,903

Net assets

21,559

19,930

745

768

Total non-current liabilities

Equity
Share capital

23

Share-based payment reserve

354

354

Investment revaluation reserve

(186)

(82)

98

75

Retained earnings

20,548

18,815

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent company

21,559

19,930

Capital redemption reserve

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 20 August 2018.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
The notes on pages 22 to 44 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended 31 March 2018

Share
Capital
£’000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£’000

Share-based
payment
reserve
£’000

Investment
revaluation
reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings
£’000

Total
equity
£’000

778

65

354

(52)

16,601

17,746

Profit for the year

–

–

–

–

2,322

2,322

Revaluation of available-for-sale investments

–

–

–

(30)

–

(30)

Total comprehensive income

–

–

–

(82)

2,322

2,292

Share-based payment charge for the year

–

–

–

–

–

–

Dividend paid

–

–

–

–

–

–

Purchase of own shares

(10)

10

–

–

(108)

(108)

Total transactions with owners

(10)

10

–

–

(108)

(108)

Balance at 31 March 2017

768

75

354

(82)

18,815

19,930

Profit for the year

–

–

–

–

2,146

2,146

Revaluation of available-for-sale investments

–

–

–

(104)

–

(104)

Total comprehensive income

–

–

–

(104)

2,146

2,042

Share-based payment charge for the year

–

–

–

–

–

–

Dividend paid

–

–

–

–

(151)

(151)

Purchase of own shares

(23)

23

–

–

(262)

(262)

Total transactions with owners

(23)

23

–

–

(413)

(413)

Balance at 31 March 2018

745

98

354

(186)

20,548

21,559

Balance at 1 April 2016
Comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

The notes on pages 22 to 44 form part of these financial statements.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018

Note

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

25

(6,274)

6,523

Operating activities
Cash (outflow)/inflow from operations
Interest paid
Corporation tax paid
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

(395)

(406)

(65)

(1,464)

(6,734)

4,653

Investing activities

5

1

(44)

(143)

Dividends received

36

31

Proceeds from sale of investment properties

72

1,094

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

79

94

148

1,077

Purchase of own share capital

(262)

(108)

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

(151)

–

2,785

2,001

–

(5,331)

2,372

(3,438)

Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated from investing activities
Financing activities

New loans

25

Loan repayments
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

(4,214)

2,292

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

19

5,280

2,988

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

19

1,066

5,280

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

The notes on pages 22 to 44 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts
1. Accounting Policies
Basis of accounting
Safeland plc is quoted on the AIM market of the London Stock
Exchange and was incorporated in and is domiciled in the UK.
The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
interpretations adopted by the European Union and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
Going concern
The directors report that, based on the Group’s budgets and financial
projections to 31 March 2020 and the renewal of the Group’s revolving
credit facility with Lloyds Bank plc to December 2020, they have
satisfied themselves that the business is a going concern.
Further, the ratio of the loan to property valuations is a covenant of
the loan facility. If values of the investment and trading properties fall
significantly, the Group would breach this covenant. The directors do
not expect the value of the Group’s property portfolio to fall and as a
result do not anticipate breaching this covenant.
Therefore the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group
have adequate resources and facilities to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis.
IFRS in issue but not yet applied in the current financial statements
The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and
interpretations with an effective date for periods starting on or after
the date on which these financial statements start:
— IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) (effective 1 January 2018)
— IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1
January 2018)
— IFRS 16 Leases (effective 1 January 2019)
IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities. It simplifies the existing
categories of financial instruments, introduced an expected credit
loss model and redefines the criteria needed for effective hedging.
These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, but there will be
limited changes to presentation and disclosure.
IFRS 15 sets out a model for the recognition of revenue and
establishing principles for reporting information about the nature,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. The new standard does not apply
to gross rental income but does apply to service charge income,
management and performance fees and trading property disposals.
The impact on these items of revenue is not expected to have a
material impact on the financial statements.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018
The adoption of IFRS 16 is not expected to have a material effect on
the financial statements. For lessees, a new asset will be recognised
in property, plant and equipment equal to the present value of future
lease obligations formerly accounted as operating leases. The
accounting for lessors will however not significantly change.
A number of IFRS and IFRIC interpretations are also currently in
issue which are not relevant for the Group’s activities and which have
not therefore been adopted in preparing these financial statements.
Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for the revaluation of investment properties
and certain financial instruments. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out below.
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. The Group obtains and exercises control through
voting rights. Management has reviewed the control assessments in
accordance with IFRS 10 and has concluded that there is no effect
on the classification as subsidiaries or joint-ventures of any of the
Group’s investments held during the year or the comparative year
covered by these financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Generally there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. To support the presumption and when the Group
has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date when the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash-flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
The acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries where property constitutes
the only or main asset, are accounted for as property transactions.
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A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to
joint control, i.e. when the strategic, financial and operating policy
decisions relating to the activities of the joint venture require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Hotel revenue comprised revenues from overnight hotel
accommodation, banqueting facility hire and sales of food and
beverages. All revenue was recognised when the service was
provided. The hotel closed and ceased to trade in the prior year
on 3 August 2016.

The Group reports its interests in joint ventures using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as
held for resale.

Other fees in relation to property management are recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of management contracts.

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the joint venture, less any impairment in the value of individual
investments. Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Group’s
interest in that joint venture are not recognised, unless the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the joint venture recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill.
Operating segments
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision makers, who are responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, have been identified as the executive directors. The
operating segments of the business are property trading, property
management and property investment. Hotel management was
discontinued in 2017.
Revenue
Revenue is stated net of VAT and comprises rental income, proceeds
from sales of trading properties, fees, commissions and other
income.
Sales of trading properties are recognised on completion of a
contract. This reflects the point of transfer of risk and rewards
when trading property is sold.
Rental income from investment and trading properties leased out
under operating leases is recognised in the Income Statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent rents
which comprise turnover rents are recognised as income in the
periods in which they are earned. Rent reviews are recognised when
such reviews have been agreed with tenants. Lease incentives are
recognised as an integral part of the net consideration for the use
of the property and amortised on a straight-line basis over term of
lease, or the period to the first tenant break, if shorter.

Freehold property
Freehold property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
is depreciated at 2% per annum on a straight-line basis, pro-rated in
the year of acquisition.
Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on
the following annual bases:
Motor vehicles
Fixtures, fittings and equipment

25% (reducing balance)
20% (reducing balance)

Investment properties
Investment properties are those properties that are held either to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured and stated at fair value in the statement of
financial position. Valuation surpluses and deficits arising in the year
are included in the consolidated income statement.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of a property is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the fair value of
the asset at the beginning of the period and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Investment properties developed
by the Group are transferred from current assets at cost with the
gain or loss on valuation being recorded in the consolidated income
statement.
Investment properties may be freehold properties or leasehold
properties. For leasehold properties that are classified as investment
properties, the associated leasehold obligations, if material, are
accounted for as finance lease obligations.
Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to
exercise significant influence, but not control, through participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Investments in associates are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, adjusted by post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any
impairment in the value of individual investments of the associates.
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Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale.
The investments are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction
costs and thereafter carried at fair value with gains and losses taken
to other comprehensive income. The gains and losses taken to other
comprehensive income are recycled through the income statement
on realisation. If there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
the cumulative loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement. The amount removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in the income statement.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018
Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) are assessed for indicators of impairment at each statement
of financial position date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.
For shares classified as available for sale (AFS), a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of its impairment. For all other
financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement are not
reversed through profit or loss.

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

Trading properties
Properties held for development and resale are classified as trading
properties and are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises purchase price, acquisition costs and direct
expenditure.

(c) the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

Operating profit
Operating profit is stated before exceptional items, finance income,
finance cost and tax.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows.
Borrowings
Borrowings other than bank overdrafts are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings, using the effective interest method.
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit and loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

(d) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
(f) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
Group, including:
(i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
Group (e.g. an increased number of delayed payments or an
increased number of credit card borrowers who have reached
their credit limit and are paying the minimum monthly amount);
or
(ii) national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the Group (e.g. an increase in the
unemployment rate in the geographical area of the borrowers,
a decrease in property prices for mortgages in the relevant
area, a decrease in oil prices for loan assets to oil producers, or
adverse changes in industry conditions that affect the borrowers
in the Group).
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced
either directly or through use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss shall be recognised in profit or loss.
With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
Equity
The total equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent
comprises the following:
Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares issued.
Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve comprises the nominal value of
cancelled share capital.
Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve arises as fair value gains and
losses arise on the Group’s available-for-sale investment portfolio.
Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent undistributed cumulative earnings.
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
Share-based payments
The equity settled share-based payment reserve arises as the
expense of issuing share-based payments is recognised over time.
The reserve will fall as share options vest and are exercised but the
reserve may equally rise or might see any reduction offset, as new
potentially dilutive share options are issued. Balances relating to
share options that lapse after they vest are transferred to retained
fair value of employee services determined by reference to transfer of
instruments granted.
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The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based
payment to share options. The fair value of the share options are
determined at the grant date and are expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of nonmarket based vesting conditions.
Fair value is measured by use of the Monte Carlo model. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects on non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
Derivative financial instruments
None of the Group’s derivative financial instruments are designated
as a hedging instrument. The derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value of the
derivatives are taken to the income statement.
Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting
profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised on the
basis of tax losses enacted or substantively enacted at the statement
of financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in
the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.
Critical accounting judgments and key
sources of estimation and uncertainty
The Group has no key judgements, only key estimates.
The fair value of the Group’s investment and trading properties is
the main area within the financial statements where the Board has
exercised significant estimates. The fair value of the Group’s property
portfolio is based upon directors’ valuations and is inherently
subjective. Where the market has transaction volumes lower than
average, the subjectivity around the valuations is more acute.
Investment properties
At 31 March 2018, the carrying value of the Group’s investment
properties was £14,762,000 (2017: £1,182,000). As at 31 March 2018
and 31 March 2017, the investment properties were subject to a
valuation exercise. The valuations were performed by the directors of
Safeland plc and were based on valuations performed for the Group’s
refinancing. The increase in fair value of the Group’s investment
properties during the year is £3,833,000 (2017: increase of £459,000).
Investment property values are subjective. Where there is uncertainty
as to the outcome of future planning decisions, future sales values
and timings, the directors assess the risk of these outcomes when
valuing each property.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018
Trading properties
At 31 March 2018, the carrying value of the Group’s trading properties
was £5,018,000 (2017: £9,348,000). Trading properties are properties
acquired or developed and held for sale and are shown at the lower of
cost or net realisable value. The cost of trading properties are those
costs directly associated with the acquisition and development of a
specific site. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs to completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Determination of fair value of deferred consideration
The fair value of the deferred consideration received for the sale
of the Chandos Tennis Club has been based on the value of the
original deferred consideration which was due to be received, being
£9.2 million. The directors consider this to be the most appropriate
valuation. Though similar properties in the location are being initially
marketed, they have not been sold. Consequently, the use of those
valuations as a benchmark could lead to an overstatement of the
value of the properties. Therefore, until construction of the properties
achieves practical completion and they are sold, the directors
consider a more prudent view as appropriate in estimating the value
of the four properties which comprise the £9.2 million.
Discount rate used in estimating the
present value of deferred consideration
The discount rate applied to the deferred consideration in previous
years was based on an estimation of the weighted average cost of
capital of the Group. This calculation included estimates for the beta
value and for the cost of equity of the business. In 2018, the final
element of the discount on the debtor unwound through the income
statement.
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2. Operational Segments
The Group complies with IFRS 8 Operating segments, which requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, identified as the executive directors, to allocate
resources to the segments and to assess their performance.
The segments are defined by the types of product and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenue.
The measure of segment result is considered to be the IFRS measure of operating profit before administrative expenses. The Board reviews
administrative expenses, finance expenses and tax at Group level and does not allocate these costs to segments.
All activities are based in the United Kingdom.
The segmental information of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2018 was as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Property trading
& management
£’000

Property
investment
£’000

Unallocated
£’000

Total
£’000

2,850

50

–

2,900

(2,595)

–

–

(2,595)

255

50

–

305

Profit on disposal of investment properties

–

74

–

74

Gain on revaluation of investment properties

–

3,833

–

3,833

25

–

–

25

280

3,957

–

4,237

Administrative expenses

–

–

(1,577)

(1,577)

Dividend from investments

–

–

11

11

Finance income

–

–

148

148

Finance costs

–

–

(426)

(426)

280

3,957

(1,844)

2,393

Property trading
& management
£’000

Property
investment
£’000

Unallocated
£’000

Total
£’000

Segment assets

15,081

14,762

2,855

32,698

Segment liabilities

(3,072)

(6,649)

(1,418)

(11,139)

Net assets

12,009

8,113

1,437

21,559

Capital expenditure

–

–

44

44

Depreciation

–

–

79

79

Share of profit of associate
Operating profit before administration expense

Profit before tax
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The segmental information of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Property trading
& management
£’000

Property
investment
£’000

Unallocated 1
£’000

Total
£’000

12,480

215

277

12,972

(10,286)

–

(231)

(10,517)
2,455

2,194

215

46

Profit on disposal of investment properties

–

694

–

694

Gain on revaluation of investment properties

–

459

–

459

31

–

–

31

2,225

1,368

46

3,639

Administrative expenses

–

–

(1,721)

(1,721)

Dividend from investments

–

–

5

5

Finance income

–

–

554

554

Finance costs

–

–

(448)

(448)

2,225

1,368

(1,564)

2,029

Property trading
& management
£’000

Property
investment
£’000

Unallocated 1
£’000

Total
£’000

Segment assets

18.583

1,182

8,068

27,833

Segment liabilities

(7,639)

–

(264)

(7,903)

Net assets

10,944

1,182

7,804

19,930

Capital expenditure

–

–

5

5

Depreciation

–

–

81

81

Gross profit

Share of profit of associate
Operating profit before administration expense

Profit before tax

(1) The hotel business ceased to operate in the prior year with effect from 3 August 2016 and has been closed permanently. Its results for 2017
have been included within unallocated.

3. Revenue
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,809
91

12,480
215

2,900

12,695

-

277

2,900

12,972

Continuing
Trading property sales
Rental income from property investment

Discontinued
Hotel operations
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4. Cost of sales
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,391

10,238

–

231

204

48

2,595

10,517

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Staff costs (see note 11)

819

890

Legal and professional fees

248

161

Cost of trading properties sold
Hotel operation (including staff costs)
Selling costs

5. Administrative expenses

Property costs
(Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation
Other expenses

19

53

(18)

(12)

79

81

430

548

1,577

1,721

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

6. Finance income

Bank deposit interest
Unwinding of debtor

5

1

143

553

148

554

The unwinding of a debtor represents the unwinding of the discount on the long-term receivable owing from the sale of the Chandos Tennis Club.

7. Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Amortised loan arrangement fees

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

395

406

31

42

426

448
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8. Profit for the financial year
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Depreciation on owned assets

79

80

Auditor’s remuneration for audit services

58

58

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

33

33

Profit for the financial year is arrived at after charging:

Amounts payable in respect of both audit and non-audit services are set out below:

Fees payable to the auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts

–

–

The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries

25

25

Taxation compliance services

46

46

–

40

104

144

Fees payable to the auditor and its related entities for other services:

Taxation advisory services

The audit fees disclosed in 2018 represent the fees payable for the audit for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the non-audit fees are those
incurred in the year.
The non-audit fees have been considered by the directors and are subject to the scrutiny of the non-executive director.
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9. Tax
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Current tax

–

–

Corporation tax – prior

205

(253)

Total current tax

205

(253)

42

(40)

247

(293)

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,393

2,029

455

406

Non-taxable income

(67)

(347)

Non-deductible expenditure

354

51

(728)

(92)

(17)

(139)

Corporation tax – current year

Deferred tax
Total tax charge/(credit)

The charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the Consolidated Income Statement as follows:

Profit before tax
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2017: 20%)
Factors affecting the (credit)/charge for the year

Revaluation on investment property
Profit on disposal of investment property
Chargeable gain on disposal of investment property
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Deferred tax not recognised
Effect of changes in future corporation tax rates
Group tax charge/(credit)

43

(42)

205

(253)

(7)

(50)

9

173

247

(293)

Details of deferred tax liabilities are included in note 22.
The Group has tax losses of approximately £7.2m before offset of deferred tax on revaluation surplus (2017: £5.8m) which are available for
offset against future trading profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in the financial statements due to the uncertainty as to the
timing of the reversal. If the losses are utilised in future periods, the tax charge will be reduced. No deferred tax provision has been recognised
on revaluation of investment property, as the Group has sufficient unutilised trading losses to obviate the potential charge arising.
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10. Earnings per share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,146

2,322

2018
Number

2017
Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share
(continued and discontinued)

15,042,243

15,555,095

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

12,148,658

12,042,793

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share

27,190,901

27,597,888

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent company

The profit attributable to discontinued operations was £nil (2017: £46,000).
Net asset value at 31 March 2018 was £21,559,000 (2017: £19,930,000), equivalent to 145p per ordinary share (2017: 129p), though there were
fewer shares in issue at 31 March 2018 than a year previously.

11. Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) during the year was:
2018
Number

2017
Number

Sales

3

3

Administration

5

6

Hotel operations

–

6

8

15

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Wages and salaries

699

797

Social security costs

98

92

Other employment costs

22

130

819

1,019

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

The costs incurred in respect of employees (including executive directors) were:

Total staff costs

Staff costs are included within the following headings on the consolidated income statement:

Cost of sales
Administrative

–

129

819

890

819

1,019
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12. Dividends
The directors recommend a final dividend of 1 penny per share (2017: 1p). During the year, no interim dividend was paid
(2017: nil pence per share).

13. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold
property
£’000

Motor
vehicles
£’000

Fixtures, fittings
and equipment
£’000

Total
£’000

2,215

Cost

1,760

247

118

Additions

–

138

5

143

Disposals

–

(133)

(14)

(147)
2,121

At 1 April 2016

1,760

252

109

Additions

–

42

2

44

Disposals

–

(114)

–

(114)

1,760

180

111

2,051

At 1 April 2016

44

74

103

221

Charge for the year

35

40

5

80

–

(57)

(8)

(65)

At 1 April 2017

79

57

100

236

Charge for the year

36

42

1

79

–

(53)

–

(53)

115

46

101

262

At 31 March 2018

1,645

134

10

1,789

At 31 March 2017

1,681

195

9

1,885

At 1 April 2017

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation

Disposals

Disposals
At 31 March 2018
Net book value
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14. Investment properties
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

At 1 April

1,182

1,123

Transfer from current properties

9,747

–

Disposal of properties in the year

–

(400)

3,833

459

14,762

1,182

Fair value

Increase in fair value during the year
At 31 March

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March 2018 comprises freehold properties of £13,832,000 (2017: £457,000) and long leasehold
properties of £930,000 (2017: £725,000). The leasehold and freehold investment property have been classified within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (unobservable inputs). The transfer from current properties developed by the Group was at cost.
The investment properties consist of residential property located in North London and have been valued by the directors. The methodology
to value these properties is to compare historical comparable market transactions less a percentage reduction to reflect the limitations of
restrictive tenancies where appropriate. Based on valuations at 31 March 2018, if the percentage reduction was 5% higher or lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would increase or decrease by 8.5%.
The Group has pledged investment properties with a carrying value of £14,762,000 (2017: £1,182,000) to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2018 had been arrived at on the basis of market value as defined in the
Apportionment and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
The historical cost of investment properties included in the financial statements at 31 March 2018 is £10,578,000 (2017: £831,000) of which
£10,035,000 (2017: £288,000) are freehold and £543,000 (2017: £543,000) are long leasehold properties.
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15. Investments in associates
The Group owns 50% of the ordinary share capital of Grafton Insurance Services Limited (“Grafton”), a company incorporated in the United
Kingdom and whose registered office is Goldsmiths House, 137-141 Regent Street, London, W1B 4HZ. Grafton is accounted for as an associate
as Safeland plc exercises significant influence over Grafton but does not have joint control. The statutory accounts for Grafton are drawn up to
31 January each year. The accounts to 31 January 2018 have been used to account for Grafton in the Group’s accounts and for the disclosures
below as, in the opinion of the directors, there is no material difference compared to using accounts to 31 March 2018.
The Group’s investment in Grafton, using the equity method of accounting, is:

1 April

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

127

121

25

31

Dividends received

(25)

(25)

31 March

127

127

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Share of profit

The carrying amount of this investment includes goodwill of £82,000 (2017: £82,000).
The Group’s share of net assets in Grafton was:

At 1 April

45

39

Share of profit

25

31

(25)

(25)

45

45

Dividends received
31 March

The Group’s share of aggregated amounts relating to associates at 31 March 2018 extracted from the 31 January 2018 statutory accounts,
updated to reflect significant transactions up to 31 March 2018, is set out below:
2018
£’000

Total assets
Total liabilities

Revenue
Profit/(loss) for the period

2017
£’000

67

67

(22)

(22)

45

45

72

72

6

6
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16. Available-for-sale investments
Cost
£’000

Fair value
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 April 2017

40

762

802

Fair value loss

–

(104)

(104)

40

658

698

At 31 March 2018

The Group owns 1,111,111 ordinary equity shares (representing 2.95% of the issued equity) in Trust Property Management plc. The directors
estimate that the fair value of these shares at 31 March 2018 was £40,000 (2017: £40,000).
The Group owns 1,420,864 shares in Safestay plc representing 4.2% of the issued share capital. At both year-ends, the shares were restated at
market value, of 45.1p (2018) and 52.4p (2017).
The Group owns 5,119 ordinary equity shares (representing 0.04% of the issued equity) in Palace Capital plc. The market value of these shares
at 31 March 2018 was £17,000 (2017: £17,000).

17. Trading properties

Properties for resale

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

5,018

9,348

The Group has pledged properties for resale with carrying value of £5,012,000 (2017: £9,113,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
Properties for resale were reviewed for impairment as at 31 March 2018; the directors are satisfied that no impairment is necessary.
Trading properties are properties acquired or developed and held for sale and are shown at the lower of cost or net realisable value. The cost
of trading properties are those costs directly associated with the acquisition and development of a specific site. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs to completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

18. Trade and other receivables
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Trade receivables

5

80

Other receivables

9,208

9,122

25

7

9,238

9,209

Prepayments and accrued income

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is no less than their fair value. Of the other receivables,
£9,200,000 (2017: £9,058,000) is deferred consideration on the sale of the Chandos Tennis Club. Although this was past due at the balance
sheet date, this amount has not been impaired as the Group took possession of the properties after the year end. (See note 28).
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19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

1,066

5,280

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

10,455

7,670

–

(31)

10,455

7,639

All of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2018 and 2017 were in sterling.
The directors consider that the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to their fair value.

20. Bank loans falling due within one year

Bank loans
Unamortised borrowing costs

There were no breaches of bank loan covenants as at 31 March 2018 or 31 March 2017.
All of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts disclosed above comprise borrowings in sterling. Further details of the Group’s bank borrowings
are disclosed in note 27.
The bank loans are secured on investment and trading properties owned by the Group totalling £19,744,000 (2017: £10,295,000).
The Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities as at 31 March 2018 of £2,045,000 (2017: £4,830,000).
At 31 March 2018, the Group had a £12,500,000 (2017: £12,500,000) revolving credit facility with Lloyds Bank plc (“the Bank”), secured on
certain properties owned by the Group. The facility was based on LIBOR plus a fixed margin. The Group renewed the facility during April 2018
under similar terms as the original facility, but with a limit of £16,500,000. At 31 March 2018, a notional amount of the loan of £5,000,000
(2017: £5,000,000) was capped at 3%.

21. Trade and other payables
2018
£’000

Trade payables
Social security and other taxes
Other creditors
Accurals and deferred income

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.

2017
£’000

170

45

19

13

50

29

231

145

470

232
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22. Deferred income tax liabilities
Revaluation
of investment
properties
£’000

1 April 2016
Credit to income statement

Total
£’000

72

72

(40)

(40)

31 March 2017

32

32

Debit to income statement

42

42

31 March 2018

74

74

From 1 April 2017, the corporation tax rate was reduced to 19%.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to trading losses due to uncertainty over the timing of reversal. The Group has losses
totalling £7.2m before offset of deferred tax on revaluation surplus (2017: £5.8m) that may be available for future utilisation, and accordingly no
deferred tax has been provided for the revaluation upwards of investment properties.

23. Share capital
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,288

2,288

745

768

Authorised:
45,750,000 ordinary shares of 5p each
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
14,907,380 (2017: 15,367,380) ordinary shares of 5p each

During the year, the Company bought back and cancelled a total of 460,000 shares (2017: 193,000 shares), in 8 tranches, at a total cost of
£262,000 (2017: £108,000 including brokers’ fees), reducing the nominal value of shares by £23,000 (2017: £10,000), which is reflected in these
accounts as a capital redemption reserve. The directors consider that the acquisition and cancellation of these shares will enhance the value of
each of the remaining shares in issue.

24. Share-based payments
No new share options were granted in the year. The Company has previously granted share options to subscribe for ordinary shares of 5p each,
as follows:
Number of share options outstanding
Grant date

Exercise price per share (pence)

Period within which options are exercisable

2018

2017

28/09/2011

9.25

28/09/2014 to 27/09/2021

14,477,675

14,477,675

14,477,675

14,477,675

The share options are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant. The
vesting period is three years from the date of grant and the share price must be a minimum of 11.25p. The options are forfeited if the employee
leaves the Group before the options vest.

Safeland plc

Report & Financial Statements 2018

39

Details of these share options are summarised in the table below:
2018

2017

Number of share
options

Weighted average
exercise price (pence)

Number of share
options

Weighted average
exercise price (pence)

Outstanding at beginning and end of year

14,477,675

9.25

14,477,675

9.25

Exercisable at end of year

14,477,675

9.25

14,477,675

9.25

A share-based payment charge in relevant years was calculated using the Monte Carlo model to calculate the fair value of the share options.

25. Notes to the cash flow statement

Profit before tax

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

2,393

2,029

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Profit) on sale of investment properties
Revaluation of investment properties
Finance costs

79

80

(18)

(12)

(74)

(694)

(3,833)

(459)

426

448

(148)

(1)

–

(553)

Share of results of associate

(25)

(31)

Dividend from investment

(11)

–

(5,415)

5,490

Finance income
Unwinding of discount on deferred revenue

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in trading properties
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

114

270

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

238

(44)

(6,274)

6,523

At 1 April 2017
£’000

Cashflow
£’000

At 31 March 2018
£’000

Cash (outflow)/inflow from operations

Movement in net debt

5,280

(4,214)

1,066

Bank loans

(7,639)

(2,816)

(10,455)

Net debt

(2,359)

(7,030)

(9,389)

Cash at bank
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26. Related-party transactions
The Group has taken advantage of the exemption contained within IAS 24 – ‘related-party disclosures’ from the requirement to disclose
transactions between Group companies as these have been eliminated on consolidation.
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below.
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Directors’ emoluments including employer’s National Insurance

462

451

Benefits in kind including Class 1A National Insurance

108

122

570

573

Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
Mr L G Lipman owns a leasehold property, the freehold of which is owned by the Group. During the year, the Group invoiced £nil (2017: £nil)
to Mr L G Lipman in respect of ground rent on this property. The Group manages a portfolio of properties owned by Mr L G Lipman. The Group
received fees of £nil (2017: £nil) from Mr L G Lipman in the year.
There are no other transactions with directors, and there are no other related party transactions.

27. Financial instruments
Capital management
Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus debt.
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base with a view to underpinning investor, creditor and market confidence and sustaining the
future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares, other capital reserves and retained earnings. To this end, the Board
monitors the Group’s performance at both a corporate and individual asset level and sets internal guidelines for interest cover and gearing.
The executive directors monitor the Group’s current and projected financial position against these guidelines. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Share capital

745

768

Share-based payment reserve

354

354

Investment revaluation reserve

(186)

(82)

98

75

Retained earnings

20,548

18,815

Bank loans

10,455

7,670

Capital redemption reserve

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirements.
Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instruments are
disclosed in note 1 to these financial statements and in the tables below:
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Categories of financial instruments
At 31 March 2018, the Group held the following financial assets:
2018
£’000

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Available-for-sale financial assets

2017
£’000

13

144

1,066

5,280

1079

5,424

698

802

1,777

6,226

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

10,455

7,639

240

87

10,695

7,726

At 31 March 2018, the Group held the following financial liabilities:

Bank loans
Trade and other payables

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans and trade and other payables approximate to their fair value.
Financial risk management
The Group’s financial instruments comprise bank loans, cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale investments, and various items within
trade and other receivables and payables that arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies
for managing these risks which are detailed below.
Credit risk
The principal credit risk arises from trade receivables which predominately comprise rental debtors and cash balances. These are unsecured
but the Group’s exposure to tenant default is limited as no tenant accounts for more than 5% of total rental income.
Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings at variable rate expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group enters into interest rate swaps to manage its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed and capped interest rate swaps.
The Group raises borrowings at floating rates and swaps them into fixed or capped rates that are lower than those available if the Group
borrowed at fixed rates directly. Under the swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange the difference between fixed contracts and
floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed notional amount.
Liquidity risk
All of the Group’s long term borrowings are secured on the Group’s property portfolio. If the value of the portfolio were to fall significantly,
the Group risk breaching borrowing covenants. The board regularly review the Group’s gearing levels, cash flow projections and associated
headroom and ensure that excess banking facilities are available for future use.
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Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its borrowings, which are at interest rates at 3.1% above the Bank of England base rate as shown
in the table below. The Group carefully manages its interest rate risk on an ongoing basis. In May 2016, the Group took out an interest rate
instrument to manage its interest rate risk. The directors currently believe that interest rate risk is at an acceptable level.
The interest rates for the Group’s borrowings are set out in the table below. All interest rates are at variable rates, unless stated, and the rates
disclosed include margins.
2018

2017

Interest rate
%

Borrowings
£’000

Interest rate
%

Borrowings
£’000

3.60

10,455

3.58

7,639

10,455

7,639

Interest rate sensitivity
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rates for all borrowings subject to interest charges at the
statement of financial position date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the
statement of financial position date was outstanding for the whole year. A 0.25% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
Based on bank borrowings, at 31 March 2018, if interest rates were 0.25% higher or lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s net profit would alter immaterially. This is attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.
Other price risks
The Group has minimal exposure to equity price risk arising from its equity investments. The investments in equity securities present the
Group with opportunity for return through dividend income. Equity investments designated as available-for-sale are held for strategic rather
than trading purposes and the Group does not actively trade these investments.
The Group’s sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year.
Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparties will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group seeks to limit the credit risk on cash at bank by only depositing monies with UK banks that have high credit ratings at AA or above.
Other credit risk arises from trade receivables which predominately comprise rental debtors. These are unsecured but the Group’s exposure
to tenant default is limited as no tenant accounts for more than 5% of total rental income. The Group therefore does not have any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.
Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors. The board manages liquidity risk by regularly reviewing
the Group’s gearing levels, cash flow projections and associated headroom and ensuring that excess banking facilities are available for future
use. All of the Group’s long term borrowings are secured on the Group’s property portfolio.
Included in note 20 is a description of the undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.
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Liquidity and interest risk tables
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its all financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay including interest.

2018

Less than 1 year
£’000

2-5 years
£’000

Total
£’000

10,455

–

10,455

10,455

–

10,455

Variable interest rate borrowings

All of the above loans are at a set interest rate above the Bank of England base rate or LIBOR. The weighted average effective interest rate at
31 March 2018 was 3.60%.

2017

Less than 1 year
£’000

2-5 years
£’000

Total
£’000

7,670

–

7,670

7,670

–

7,670

Variable interest rate borrowings

All of the above loans are at a set interest rate above the Bank of England base rate or LIBOR. The weighted average effective interest rate at
31 March 2017 was 3.58%.
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position
IFRS13 categorises financial assets and liabilities as being valued in three hierarchical levels:
— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
— Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

Total
£’000

Listed

658

–

–

658

Other

–

–

40

40

2017

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

Total
£’000

Listed

792

–

–

792

Other

–

–

40

40

2018

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments

There were no transfers between levels in either year. There were no movements in the fair value measurements of level 3 financial assets
during either year.
All the Group’s freehold and leasehold investment properties as disclosed in note 14 above are classified as level 3. They have been estimated
based on appraisals by the directors, taking into consideration valuations performed for the Group’s refinancing. The valuation process and fair
value changes are reviewed by the directors at each reporting date.
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28. Post-balance sheet events
In April 2018 the Group negotiated a renewal of the Group’s revolving credit facilities with its principal lender. This will provide the Group with a
£16,500,000 facility through to December 2020.
During May 2018, four investment properties valued at £1,455,000 at 31 March 2018, were disposed of for a small profit.
During June 2018, the Group took possession of the four houses as part and final consideration of the Chandos Tennis Club. The consideration
payable for the sale in 2014 comprised £4.0 million in cash (which was received in 2014) and the balance was to be satisfied by way of transfer
to Safeland of four detached houses (valued at the time by the Company’s directors in aggregate at £9.2 million) in the completed development.
During the three months to June 2018, all 3 houses in the Edeleny Close development and all 18 apartments in the Raglan Hall development
were let to third parties at a total annual rental of £525,000.

Safeland plc

Report & Financial Statements 2018

45

Independent Auditor’s report to the members
of Safeland plc for the Parent Company
Opinion
Our opinion on the parent company financial statements is
unmodified
We have audited the parent company financial statements of Safeland
Plc for the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Company
Statement of Financial Position, the Company Statement of Changes
in Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the parent company financial statements:
— give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 March 2018;
— have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK) (ISAs(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the parent company financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the parent
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the parent company financial statements
in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed
entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Who we are reporting to
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
— the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the parent company financial statements is not
appropriate; or
— the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.
Overview of our audit approach
— Overall materiality: £370,000, which represented 2% of the
Company’s total assets assessed at the planning stage
— Key audit matters for the parent company were identified as
the carrying value of development property and carrying value
of investment properties
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the parent
company financial statements of the current period and include the
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether
or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included
those that had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy;
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the parent company financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members
of Safeland plc for the Parent Company
Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Carrying value of development property

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

Development property is required to be carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
under FRS102 and is a significant element of
the Company’s statement of financial position
and of the results for the year.
There is a risk that management may
influence the judgements and estimates used
in appraising development property values and
realisation during the reporting year.
We therefore identified the carrying value
of development property as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

reading the accounting policy for compliance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and that application by the Company is consistent with the stated policy;
agreement of brought forward documentation and testing additions during the year to third
party evidence to ensure they have been capitalised in line with FRS102;
testing of expected future property sales values to supporting documentation and third party
valuations where applicable;
assessing management’s forecasts of expected costs to complete the development to
determine development properties recognised at lower of cost and net realisable value; and
considering evidence obtained from other audit procedures which would indicate any
material inconsistency with the accounting adopted; and
The Company’s accounting policy on development properties and valuation is shown in note
2 to the company financial statements and related disclosures are included in note 11.
Key observations
As a result of the audit procedures we performed and, after considering management’s
disclosures of the judgements applied by them, we have concluded that development
properties have been appropriately recognised in accordance with FRS102.

Carrying value of investment properties

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to:

Several properties developed by the Company
have been re-classified and held as investment
properties, rather than being developed and
sold.

reading the accounting policy for compliance with FRS102 applicable to holding investment
properties.

FRS102 requires that these properties are
transferred at costs and held at valuation,
revalued each year. The valuation of
investment property requires significant
judgement and estimates to be made by
management. Any input inaccuracies or
unreasonable bases used in these judgements
could result in a material misstatement of the
income statement and balance sheet.
There is also a risk that management may
influence the significant judgements and
estimates in respect of property valuations
in order to achieve property valuation and
other performance targets to meet market
expectations.
We therefore identified the carrying value
of investment properties as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

testing the directors basis of valuation of investment properties to available third party
evidence of valuation and rental yield;
testing that changes in corporate tax and VAT treatment have been applied in accordance
with for assets re-designated as investment property; and
an evaluation and testing of the of the valuation methods used by management, including
appraisal against external benchmarks or valuation reports where appropriate.
The Company’s accounting policy on investment property, including valuation, is shown in
note 2 to the Company Financial Statements and related disclosures are included in note 7.
Key observations
As a result of the audit procedures performed we have concluded that investment property
has been recognised appropriately in accordance with FRS102.
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Our application of materiality
We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the
financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or
influenced. We use materiality in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit work and in evaluating the results of that work.
Materiality was determined as follows:
Materiality Measure

Parent entity

Company financial statements as a whole

£370,000 which was 2% of total assets assessed at the planning
stage. This benchmark is considered the most appropriate because
total assets represent a stable benchmark consistent with the
Company’s principal activities.
Materiality for the current year is higher than the level that we
determined for the year ended 31 March 2017 to reflect the
increased size of assets within the Company.

Performance materiality used to drive the extent of our testing

75% of financial statement materiality.

Specific materiality

We determined a lower level of specific materiality of £26,000 for
certain areas such as directors’ remuneration and related party
transactions.

Communication of misstatements to the audit committee

£26,000 and misstatements below that threshold that, in our view,
warrant reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our audit approach was a risk-based approach founded on a thorough
understanding of the Company’s business, its environment and risk
profile and in particular included:
— evaluation by the audit team of key balances based on a measure
of materiality, consistent with the Group approach;
— recognition that the Company is organised into two main operating
segments: property development and property investment. We
substantively tested a sample of transactions within each of these
streams, and ensured that properties were appropriately allocated
between the major;
— undertaking substantive testing on significant transactions,
balances and disclosures, the extent of which was based on
various factors such as our overall assessment of the control
environment, the design effectiveness of controls over individual
systems and the management of specific risks.
This approach is consistent with that adopted for the year ended
31 March 2017.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
set out on pages 1 to 17, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the parent company financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the parent company financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement of the parent company
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members
of Safeland plc for the Parent Company
Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
is unmodified
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit:
— the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the parent company
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the parent
company financial statements; and
— the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matter on which we are required to report under the
Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the parent
company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Managing Director’s
statement, strategic report or directors’ report.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:
— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the parent Company financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the parent company financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company
financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the parent
company financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of
Safeland Plc for the year ended 31 March 2018. That report includes
details of the Group key audit matters; how we applied the concept of
materiality in planning and performing our audit; and an overview of
the scope of our audit.

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

Philip Westerman BA, ACA
Senior Statutory Auditor
For and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
London

— we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

20 August 2018

— the parent company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent
company financial statements and for being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the parent company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Year Ended 31 March 2018

Note

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

6

1,789

1,885

Investment properties

7

10,900

–

Subsidiary undertakings

8

1

1

Associated undertakings

9

90

90

10

698

802

13,478

2,778

Other investments
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Trading properties

11

2,793

5,900

Trade and other receivables

12

1,336

1,949

Cash and cash equivalents

1,022

5,230

Total current assets

5,151

13,079

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts

14

(10,455)

(7,639)

Trade and other payables

13

(6,019)

(5,856)

Total creditors: amounts falling due within one year

(16,474)

(13,495)

Net current liabilities

(11,323)

(416)

2,155

2,362

745

768

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

15

98

75

Share-based payment reserve

354

354

Profit and loss account

958

1,165

2,155

2,362

Capital redemption reserve

Total equity

The parent company has taken advantage of section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006 and consequently a profit and loss account for the
Company alone has not been presented or delivered to the Registrar of Companies. The profit for the year was £206,000 (2017: £349,000).
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 20 August 2018.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

Larry Lipman
Managing Director
20 August 2018
The notes on pages 51 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Year Ended 31 March 2018

Share capital
£’000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£’000

Share-based
payment
reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings/
deficit
£’000

Total
£’000

2,121

778

65

354

924

Total comprehensive income for the year

–

–

–

349

349

Purchase and cancellation of own shares

(10)

10

–

(108)

(108)

At 31 March 2017

768

75

354

1,165

2,362

Share capital
£’000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£’000

Share-based
payment
reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings/
deficit
£’000

Total
£’000

2,362

At 1 April 2016

768

75

354

1,165

Total comprehensive income for the year

–

–

–

206

206

Purchase and cancellation of own shares

(23)

23

–

(262)

(262)

–

–

–

(151)

(151)

745

98

354

958

2,155

At 1 April 2017

Dividend paid
At 31 March 2018

The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within owners’ equity:
Share capital

Amount subscribed for shares at nominal value.

Capital redemption reserve

Amount paid for the purchase and cancellation of own shares

Share-based payment reserve

Credit to equity related to share-based payments

Retained earnings

Cumulative profit of the Company attributable to equity shareholders.

The notes on pages 51 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Accounts
1. General information
Safeland plc is engaged in property owning and development
activities and also acts as the holding company of the Safeland plc
Group. The Company is public domiciled, quoted on London’s AIM
stock exchange and incorporated in England and Wales (registered
number 2012015). The address of its registered office is 1A Kingsley
Way, London N2 OFW.

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 – ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland’ (‘FRS 102’),
and with the Companies Act 2006.
The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and all
values are rounded to the nearest one thousand pounds except where
otherwise indicated.

51

Year Ended 31 March 2018
Depreciation and residual values
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, to allocate
the depreciable amount to their residual values over their estimated
working lives as follows:
Land				
Freehold buildings			
Motor vehicles			
Fixtures, fittings and equipment

not depreciated
2% (straight-line basis)
25% (reducing balance)
20% (reducing balance)

Residual values and estimated useful lives of each asset are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively.
Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
Investment properties
Investment properties are those properties that are held either to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured and stated at fair value in the statement of
financial position. Valuation surpluses and deficits arising in the year
are included in the income statement.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
measurement of certain financial assets at fair-value through profit
and loss.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of a property is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the fair value of the
asset at the beginning of the period and is recognised in the income
statement.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS
102 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates; these
are described in note 3 below. It also requires the Company’s
management to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

Investment properties may be freehold properties or leasehold
properties. For leasehold properties that are classified as investment
properties, the associated leasehold obligations, if material, are
accounted for as finance lease obligations.

In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken
advantage of all disclosure exemptions conferred by FRS 102.
Therefore these financial statements do not include:
— A statement of cash flows and related notes
— Presentation of comparative information in respect of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, and investment property
— Disclosure of key management personnel compensation
— Disclosures in respect of financial instruments (other than
disclosures required for recording financial instruments at fair
value)
— Disclosures in relation to non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations
— Certain disclosures in relation to accounting policies, changes
in accounting estimates and errors
— Certain related party disclosures
Tangible assets
Tangible assets, which comprise freehold land and buildings, office
equipment and motor vehicles, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost of an asset includes the
original purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cashgenerating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to
sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in profit
or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment
is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.
Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
in the financial statements.
Investments in associated undertakings
These investments are stated at transaction price less impairment
losses.
Investments in non-quoted equity investments
These investments are stated at transaction price less impairment
losses.
Investments in quoted equity investments
These investments are stated at market value at the end of the year.
Adjustments to market-value in the reporting period are included in
profit and loss for the year.
Revenue
Revenue is stated net of VAT and comprises rental income, proceeds
from sales of trading properties, fees, commissions and other
income.
Sales of trading properties are recognised on completion of a
contract. This reflects the point of transfer of risk and rewards
when trading property is sold.
Rental income from investment and trading properties leased out
under operating leases is recognised in the Income Statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent rents
which comprise turnover rents are recognised as income in the
periods in which they are earned. Rent reviews are recognised when
such reviews have been agreed with tenants. Lease incentives are
recognised as an integral part of the net consideration for the use
of the property and amortised on a straight-line basis over term of
lease, or the period to the first tenant break, if shorter.
Other fees in relation to property management are recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of management contracts.
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Trading properties
Stock, which comprises trading properties, is stated at the lower of
cost, including related transaction costs, and estimated selling price
less costs to complete and sell. Trading properties are recognised as
a cost in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.
At the end of each reporting period, trading properties are assessed
for impairment. If an item of inventory is impaired, the identified
inventory is reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and
sell.
Where a reversal of a previous impairment is required the
impairment charge is reversed, up to the original impairment loss.
The reversal is recognised in profit and loss.
Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other debtors, cash and
bank balances, are initially recognised at transaction price, unless
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
At the end of each reporting period, financial assets measured at
amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence of impairment. If
an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash
flows, discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss. If there is a decrease
in the impairment loss arising from an event after the impairment
was recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such
that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying
amount would have been had the impairment not been previously
recognised.
Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or (b)
substantially all of the risks and awards of the ownership of the asset
are transferred to another party, or (c) despite having retained some
significant risks and rewards of ownership, control of the asset has
been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to
unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party without imposing
additional restrictions.
Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables, bank
loans and loans from fellow group companies are initially recognised
at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing
transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest.
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Fees payable on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs.
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Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognised initially at transaction price and
subsequently recognised at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
Derivatives, including interest rate swaps and forward exchange
contracts, are not basic financial instruments. Derivatives are initially
recognised at fair-value on the date that the financial contract is
entered into. Subsequently the derivatives are re-measured at fairvalue at the end of each reporting period.
The Company does not designate any derivative as a hedging
arrangement.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is
extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amounts
presented in the financial statements when there is a legally
enforceable right and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or to realise the asset and liability simultaneously.
Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at
bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
date of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are recognised within
borrowings in current liabilities.
Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
Distributions to equity holders
Dividends and other distributions to the Company’s shareholders
are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends and other distributions are approved by the
shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the statement of
changes in equity.
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Related-party transactions
The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are
not wholly owned within the Group. Where appropriate, transactions
of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the
directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand the effect
of the transactions.
Employee benefits
The Company provides a range of benefits to employees including
paid holiday arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.
Short-term benefits
Short-term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar nonmonetary benefits are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the service is received.
Defined contribution pension plans
The Company operates various defined contribution plans for its
employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan which pays
fixed contributions to a separate entity. Once the contributions have
been paid the Company has no further payment obligations. The
payments are recognised as an expense when they are due. Amounts
not paid are shown as accruals in the Statement of Financial position.
The assets of the plans are held separately from the Company in
independently administered funds.
Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at
the date at which they are granted and is recognised as an expense
over the vesting period, which ends on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award.
Fair value is measured by use of the Monte Carlo model. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects on non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market or nonvesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance conditions are satisfied.
At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense
is calculated, representing the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement
or otherwise of non-market conditions and of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest or in the case of an instrument
subject to a market condition, be treated as vesting as described
above. The movement in cumulative expense since the previous
balance sheet date is recognised in the income statement, with a
corresponding entry in equity.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified or a new
award is designated as replacing a cancelled or settled award, the
cost based on the original award terms continues to be recognised
over the original vesting period. In addition, an expense is recognised
over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair
value of any modification, based on the difference between the fair
value of the original award and the fair value of the modified award,
both as measured on the date of the modification. No reduction is
recognised if this difference is negative.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any cost not yet recognised in
the profit and loss account for the award is expensed immediately.
Any compensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the
cancellation or settlement date is deducted from equity, with any
excess over fair value expensed in the profit and loss account.
The financial effect of awards by the Company of options over
its equity shares to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
are recognised by the parent company in its individual financial
statements. In particular the parent company records an increase in
its investment in subsidiaries with a credit to equity equivalent to the
cost in the subsidiary undertakings.
Cash-settled transactions
The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured at fair value using
an appropriate option pricing model. Fair value is established initially
at the grant date and at each balance sheet date thereafter until the
awards are settled. During the vesting period a liability is recognised
representing the product of the fair value of the award and the portion
of the vesting period expired as at the balance sheet date. From the
end of the vesting period until settlement, the liability represents the
full fair value of the award as at the balance sheet date. Changes in
the carrying amount for the liability are recognised in profit or loss for
the period.
Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the leased asset to the Group. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Incentives received to enter into finance lease reduce the fair-value
of the asset and are included in the calculation of present value of
future lease payments. Incentives received to enter into an operating
lease are credited to the profit and loss account, to reduce the lease
expense, on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.
Where the unavoidable costs of a lease exceed the economic benefit
expected to be received from it, a provision is made for the present
value of the obligations under the lease.
Provisions for liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

54

Year Ended 31 March 2018
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount
expected to be required to settle the obligation is recognised at
present value using a pre-tax discount rate. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost in profit or loss in the year in
which it arises.
Taxation
Current tax is recognised for the amount of income tax payable in
respect of the taxable profit for the current or past reporting periods
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the
reporting date, except as otherwise indicated. Deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will
be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other
future taxable profits. If and when all conditions for retaining tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset have been met, the deferred
tax is reversed.
Deferred tax is recognised when income or expenses from a
subsidiary or associate have been recognised, and will be assessed
for tax in a future period, except where:
— the Company is able to control the reversal of the timing
difference; and
— it is probable that the timing difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
A deferred tax liability or asset is recognised for the additional tax
that will be paid or avoided in respect of assets and liabilities that
are recognised in a business combination. The amount attributed to
goodwill is adjusted by the amount of deferred tax recognised.
Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date that are
expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.
With the exception of changes arising on the initial recognition of a
business combination, the tax expense (income) is presented either
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity depending on
the transaction that resulted in the tax expense (income).
Deferred tax liabilities are presented within provisions for liabilities
and deferred tax assets within debtors. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset only if:
— the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities, and
— the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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3. Judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year and
which are set out in the Group financial statements. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those
estimates.
Additionally, the following judgments made by the directors (apart from those involving estimates) have had the most significant effect on
amounts recognised in the company financial statements:
— the recoverability of the Company’s investments in and debtor balances with its subsidiary undertakings.

4. Employee costs including directors
2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Wages and salaries

699

691

Social security costs

98

85

Other employment costs

22

114

819

890

2018
Number

2017
Number

Sales

3

3

Administration

5

6

8

9

The costs incurred in respect of these expenses (including executive directors) during the year were:

5. Average number of employees

The Company’s average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) during the year was:
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6. Property, plant and equipment
Freehold
property
£’000

Motor
vehicles
£’000

Fixtures, fittings
and equipment
£’000

Total
£’000

2,121

Cost

1,760

252

109

Additions

–

42

2

44

Disposals

–

(114)

–

(114)

1,760

180

111

2,051
236

At 1 April 2017

At 31 March 2018
Depreciation
At 1 April 2017

79

57

100

Charge for the year

36

42

1

79

–

(53)

–

(53)

115

46

101

262

At 31 March 2018

1,645

134

10

1,789

At 31 March 2017

1,681

195

9

1,885

2018
£’000

2017
£’000

Disposals
At 31 March 2018
Net book value

7. Investment properties

Fair value

–

–

Transfer from current properties

7,795

–

Increase in fair value during the year

3,105

–

10,900

–

At 1 April

At 31 March

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March 2018 comprises freehold properties of £10,900,000 (2017: £nil). The freehold investment
property have been classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (unobservable inputs).
The investment properties consist of a residential property located in North London which has been valued by the directors. The methodology
to value this property is to compare historical comparable market transactions less a percentage reduction to reflect the limitations of
restrictive tenancies where appropriate. No deferred tax provision is recognised as the Company has sufficient unutilised trading losses to
obviate the potential charge arising.
The Company has pledged investment properties with a carrying value of £10,900,000 (2017: £nil) to secure banking facilities granted to the
Company.
The fair value of the Company’s investment properties at 31 March 2018 had been arrived at on the basis of market value as defined in the
Apportionment and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
The historical cost of investment properties included in the financial statements at 31 March 2018 is £7,795,000 (2017: £nil) of which £7,795,000
(2017: £nil) is freehold.
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8. Investments in subsidiaries
31 March
£’000

1

At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

The investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost which is the fair-value of the consideration paid. The investment relates solely to whollyowned subsidiaries of the Company. The subsidiary undertakings of the Company and the Group, which are located at the registered office
address shown on page 6, are set out below.
Shares in subsidiary undertakings:
The subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 and their principal activities are as follows:
Safeland Active Management Limited 		

–

Property Fund Management

Safeland Investments Limited			

–

Property investment

THFC 59 Limited				

–

Property investment

CFC 35 Limited				

–

Property investment

CFC 29 Limited				

–

Property investment

CFC 36 Limited				

–

Property investment

Ivygate Developments Limited			

–

Property investment

Dunsford Commercial Limited			

–

Property investment

Cloverdale Estates Limited			

–

Property investment

Triangle Estates Limited			

–

Property investment

Hollychain 2 Limited			

–

Property investment

Raglan Hotel Management 			
Company 2013 Limited		

–

Non-trading

All subsidiaries are incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. The share capital of all subsidiaries is wholly-owned by
Safeland plc and all subsidiaries operate in the United Kingdom.
In addition, the following companies were wholly-owned dormant subsidiaries at 31 March 2018, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in
England and Wales:

CFC 37 Limited

Hollychain 4 Limited

Icebath Limited

CFC 47 Limited

Hollychain 5 Limited

Millpark Property Company Limited

CFC 52 Limited

Hollychain 7 Limited

Placeadmit Limited

Daisyglade Limited

Hollychain 8 Limited

Pullpower Limited

Deepdale Properties Limited

Hollychain 9 Limited

Safeland (Ground Rents) Limited

Hollychain 1 Limited

Hollychain 11 Limited

Saffron Developments Limited

Hollychain 3 Limited

Hollychain 13 Limited

Safeland plc

Report & Financial Statements 2018

Notes to the Company Accounts

58

Year Ended 31 March 2018

9. Investment in associated companies
31 March
£’000

90

At 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

Shares in associated undertakings
On 30 July 2011 the Company acquired 50 per cent of the issued share capital of Grafton Insurance Services Limited (“Grafton”), a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, for a cash consideration of £90,000.

10. Other investments
Cost
£’000

Fair value
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 April 2017

40

762

802

Fair value loss

–

(104)

(104)

40

658

698

At 31 March 2018

The Company owns 1,111,111 ordinary equity shares (representing 2.95% of the issued equity) in Trust Property Management plc. The directors
estimate that the fair value of these shares at 31 March 2018 was £40,000 (2017: £40,000).
The Company owns 1,420,864 shares in Safestay plc representing 4.2% of the issued share capital. The market value of these shares at
31 March 2018 was £641,000 (2017: £745,000).
The Company owns 5,119 ordinary equity shares (representing 0.04% of the issued equity) in Palace Capital plc. The market value of these
shares at 31 March 2018 was £17,000 (2017: £17,000).
The Company also owns 4,535,005 income units and 4,535,005 capital units in the Safeland Active Management Unit Trust. The directors
estimate that the market value of these units at 31 March 2018 was £nil (2017: £nil).

11. Trading properties

Properties held for resale

31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

2,793

5,900

The Company has pledged properties for resale of £2,793,000 (2017: £5,900,000) to secure banking facilities granted to the Company.
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12. Trade and other receivables

Amounts owed by Group undertakings
Other receivables

31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

1,279

1,885

57

64

1,336

1,949

31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

All amounts shown above fall due for payment within one year.

13. Trade and other payables

Trade creditors
Amounts due to Group undertakings
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

170

12

5,617

5,670

–

28

232

146

6,019

5,856

Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand. Bank loans
are disclosed in note 14.

14. Bank loans and overdrafts
Bank loans comprise

Bank loans
Unamortised borrowing costs

31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

10,455

7,670

–

(31)

10,455

7,639
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The bank loans are secured on properties owned by the Company and by the Group. Bank loans are repayable as follows:
31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

One to two years

10,455

7,670

Two to five years

–

–

10,455

7,670

On 31 March 2018, the Company had a £12,500,000 (2017: £12,500,000) revolving credit facility with Lloyds Bank plc (“the Bank”), secured on
certain properties owned by the Group. The facility was based on LIBOR plus a fixed margin. The Group renewed the facility during April 2018
under similar terms as the original facility but with a limit of £16,500,000. At 31 March 2018, a notional amount of the loan of £5,000,000
(2017: £5,000,000) was capped at 3%.

15. Share capital
31 March
2018
£’000

31 March
2017
£’000

2,288

2,288

Authorised
45,750,000 ordinary shares of 5p each
Allotted, called and fully paid
At 1 April

768

778

Acquired by the Company and cancelled

(23)

(10)

At 31 March

745

768

The number of shares in issue is disclosed in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

16. Financial management and risks
An explanation of the significant financial, liquidity, credit and interest risks affecting the Company together with the Company’s management
of these is shown in the Group disclosures in note 27 to the consolidated accounts.

17. Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Company had no operating lease commitments (2017: £nil).

18. Related-party transactions
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted in FRS 102 not to disclose transactions with its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

19. Post-balance sheet events
In April 2018 the Company negotiated a renewal of the Group’s revolving credit facilities with its principal lender. This will provide the Group
with a £16,500,000 facility through to December 2020.
During the three months to June 2018, all 18 apartments in the Raglan Hall development were let to third parties at a total annual rental
of £444,000.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at 1a Kingsley Way, London N2 0FW on 20 September
2018 at 10.00am to consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions of which resolutions numbered 1 to 4 will be proposed as
ordinary resolutions and resolutions numbered 5 to 7 will be proposed as special resolutions:

Ordinary Business
1 THAT the report of the directors of the Company and financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 be received and
adopted.
2 THAT a final dividend be declared for the period ended 31 March 2018 of £0.01 for each ordinary share, to be paid on 28 September 2018
to ordinary shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of members at the close of business on 31 August 2018.
3 THAT Larry Lipman be re-elected as a director of the Company.
4 THAT Grant Thornton UK LLP be re-appointed as auditors of the Group and the directors be authorised to fix their remuneration.
Special Business
5 THAT:
5.1 the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 to
exercise all powers of the Company to allot any shares in the Company and to grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security
into shares in the Company up to an aggregate maximum nominal amount of £248,456 which represents approximately 33.3 per
cent of the current issued ordinary share capital of the Company, (“Ordinary Shares”) provided that this authority shall expire
(unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company in general meeting) on the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company to be held in 2019 and 30 September 2019 save that the Company shall be entitled to make, prior to the
expiry of such authority, any offer or agreement which would or might require shares to be allotted or rights to subscribe for or
convert any security into shares to be granted after the expiry of such authority and the directors may allot shares or grant rights
to subscribe for or convert securities into shares in pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had
not expired; and
5.2 the authority granted by this resolution shall replace all existing authorities to allot any shares in the Company and to grant rights
to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company previously granted to the directors pursuant to section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (save to the extent that the same are exercisable pursuant to section 551(7) of the Companies Act 2006 by
reason of any offer or agreement made prior to the date of this resolution which would or might require shares to be allotted or
rights to be granted on or after that date).
6 THAT the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally empowered pursuant to sections 570 and 573 of the Companies Act 2006
(a) subject to the passing of Resolution 5, to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Companies Act 2006) for cash pursuant
to the authority conferred by Resolution 5; and (b) to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560(3) of the Companies Act 2006 (sale
of treasury shares)) for cash, in either case as if section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 did not apply to such allotment, provided that this
power shall be limited to:
6.1 the allotment of equity securities in connection with a rights issue, open offer or otherwise in favour of ordinary shareholders
where the equity securities respectively attributable to the interest of all ordinary shareholders are proportionate (as nearly as
may be) to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them and for the purposes of this resolution “rights issue” means an
offer of equity securities open for acceptance for a period fixed by the directors to holders on the register on a fixed record date of
Ordinary Shares in proportions to their respective holdings; and
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6.2 the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 6.1 above) of equity securities up to an aggregate maximum nominal value of £75,461,
which represents approximately 10 per cent of Ordinary Shares, and this power shall (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed by the
Company in general meeting) expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2019
and 30 September 2019 save that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the
power hereby conferred had not expired.
7

THAT the Company be and is hereby authorised for the purpose of section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 to make market purchases
(within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Companies Act 2006) of Ordinary Shares, on such terms and in such manner as the directors
may from time to time determine, provided that:
7.1 the maximum number of Ordinary Shares authorised to be purchased is 2,234,616 being such number of Ordinary Shares as
represents approximately 14.99 per cent of the current issued Ordinary Share capital of the Company;
7.2 the minimum price (exclusive of any expenses) which may be paid for any Ordinary Share shall be not less than 5 pence, being the
nominal value of each Ordinary Share;
7.3 the maximum price (exclusive of any expenses) which may be paid for any Ordinary Share shall be not more than the higher of:
7.3.1 5 per cent above the average of the market value for an Ordinary Share as derived from the Daily Official List of the London
Stock Exchange plc for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which the Ordinary Share is contracted to
be purchased; and
7.3.2 		 the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary Share on the
Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange plc at the time the purchase is carried out;
7.4 unless previously renewed, varied or revoked, this authority shall expire on the earlier of the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held in 2019 and 30 September 2019; and
7.5 the Company may make a contract to purchase Ordinary Shares under this authority before its expiry which will or may be
executed wholly or partly thereafter and may make a purchase of Ordinary Shares in pursuance of any such contract as if such
authority had not expired.

By order of the Board.

Stuart Black
Company Secretary
20 August 2018

Registered Office
1A Kingsley Way
London
N2 0FW
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Notes
THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION
1

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other
professional adviser authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 immediately.

2

If you have sold or transferred all your ordinary shares in the Company, please send this document and the enclosed form of proxy to the
stockbroker, or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

3

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of that
shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting
provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share held by the appointing shareholder.

4

To be effective, the relevant proxy form must be completed and lodged with the Company’s registrar, Link Asset Services, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, no later than 48 hours before the meeting (excluding non-business days) together with the original
of any power of attorney or other authority under which the form of proxy is signed. In the case of a corporation, the form of proxy must
be executed under its common seal or under the hand of any officer or attorney duly authorised. You can only appoint a proxy using the
procedures set out in these notes and the notes to the form of proxy. Completion and return of the relevant proxy form enclosed herewith
will not prevent a shareholder from attending and voting in person. If you have appointed a proxy and attend the meeting in person, your
proxy appointment will automatically be terminated.

5

A vote withheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution.
If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his / her discretion. Your proxy will vote (or abstain from voting)
as he / she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is put before the meeting.

6

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the
Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) of the meeting by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST personal
members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer
to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf. In order for a proxy
appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST Proxy Instruction”) must
be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s specifications and must contain the information required
for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy
or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received
by the Company’s agent (ID RA10) no later than 48 hours before the meeting (excluding non-business days). For this purpose, the time of
receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which
the Company’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change
of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means. CREST members
and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not make
available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation
to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST member is a
CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by
any particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) are
referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings. The
Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001 (the “CREST Regulations”).

7 In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by the
most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s
register of members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).
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8 The Company, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the CREST Regulations, specifies that only those members registered in the Register of
Members of the Company at close of business on 18 September 2018 (or if the Annual General Meeting is adjourned, members entered
on the Register of Members of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the adjourned Annual General Meeting)
shall be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting in respect of the number of ordinary shares registered in their
name at that time. Changes to entries on the Register of Members of the Company after close of business on 18 September 2018 shall be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend, speak or vote at the Meeting.
9

Any corporation which is a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers as
a member provided that, if it is appointing more than one corporate representative, it does not do so in relation to the same shares. It is
therefore no longer necessary to nominate a designated corporate representative.

10 Copies of the service agreements of the Executive directors and the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Director will be available
for inspection at the Company’s registered office during normal business hours on any weekday (but not at weekends or on public holidays)
up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting. Copies of all the above mentioned documents will also be available on the date
of the Annual General Meeting at the place of the meeting for 15 minutes prior to the meeting until its conclusion.
11 Except as provided above, members who have general queries about the meeting should write to the Company Secretary at the address
of our registered office. You may not use any electronic address provided either in this notice of Annual General Meeting or any related
documents (including the proxy form) to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.
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Annual General Meeting Proxy Form

Year Ended 31 March 2018

Before completing this form, please read the explanatory notes overleaf
I/We being a member of the Company appoint the Chairman of the meeting or (see note 4 on next page)

as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of Safeland plc to be held at 1a Kingsley Way,
London N2 0FW on 20 September 2018 at 10.00am and at any adjournment of the meeting.
I/We direct my/our proxy to vote on the following resolutions as I/we have indicated by marking the appropriate box with an ‘X’. If no indication
is given, my/our proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his or her discretion and I/we authorise my/our proxy to vote (or abstain from voting)
as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is put before the meeting.
For

Against

Abstain

1 THAT the report of the directors of the Company and financial statements for
the financial period ended 31 March 2018 be received and adopted.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

2 THAT a final dividend be declared for the period ended 31 March 2018 of
£0.01 for each ordinary share, to be paid on 28 September 2018 to ordinary
shareholders whose name appears on the Company’s register
of members at the close of business on 31 August 2018.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

3 THAT Larry Lipman be re-elected as a director of the Company.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

4 THAT Grant Thornton UK LLP be re-appointed as auditors of the Group and the
directors be authorised to fix their remuneration.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

5 THAT the directors be authorised to allot shares pursuant to section 551
of the Companies Act 2006.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

6 THAT section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 be disapplied.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

7 THAT the Company be authorised to purchase its own shares pursuant
to section 701 of the Companies Act 2006.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

Signature
Shareholder name
Shareholder address

Quantity of shareholding

Please see notes 4 & 5 on the next page.
Please return the proxy form in the reply-paid envelope provided.

Date
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE PROXY FORM
1

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of that
shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the
meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share held by the appointing shareholder.

2

To be effective, this form and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed must be lodged with the
Company’s registrars at Link Asset Services, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU not later than 48 hours (excluding nonbusiness days) before the meeting. In the case of a corporation, this proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand
of any officer or attorney duly authorised.

3

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the first name on the register who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be accepted
to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

4

If you wish to appoint as your proxy someone other than the Chairman of the meeting, delete the words “the Chairman of the meeting”
and insert the name of your chosen proxy in the space provided in the first box. If the proxy is being appointed in relation to part of your
holding only, please enter in the box next to the proxy’s name the number of shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as
your proxy. If this box is left blank, they will be authorised in respect of your full voting entitlement. A proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

5

To appoint more than one proxy, (an) additional proxy form(s) may be obtained by contacting the Company’s registrar, Link Asset
Services, on 0871 664 0300. Calls cost 12p per minute plus your phone company’s access charge. If you are outside the United Kingdom,
please call +44 371 664 0300. Calls outside the United Kingdom will be charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open
between 9.00 am – 5.30 pm, Monday to Friday excluding public holidays in England and Wales or you may copy this form. Please indicate
in the box next to the proxy holder’s name the number of shares in relation to which they are authorised to act as your proxy. Multiple
proxy appointments should be returned together in the same envelope.

6

Any alteration should be initialled by the person signing this proxy.

7

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes how you wish your votes on the resolutions to be cast. Unless otherwise instructed,
your proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he/she thinks fit. The “Abstain” option is to enable you to abstain on any particular
resolution. A vote abstained will be treated as a vote withheld and is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not be counted in
the calculation of votes for or against the resolution. If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her
discretion.

8

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the
Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) of the meeting by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual. CREST
personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s),
should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf.

9

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “CREST
Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s specifications and must contain
the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes
the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be
transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s agent (RA10) no later than 48 hours (excluding non-business days) before the
meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message
by the CREST Applications Host) from which the Company’s agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST.

10 You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
Completion and return of the proxy form will not prevent a shareholder from attending and voting in person. If you have appointed
a proxy and attend the meeting in person, your proxy appointment will automatically be terminated. If you submit more than one
valid proxy appointment, the appointment received last before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
11 To have the right to attend, speak and vote (and also for the purpose of calculating how many votes a person may cast), a person must
have his/her name entered on the Register of Members of the Company by no later than close of business on 18 September 2018 or,
in the event that the meeting is adjourned, 48 hours prior to the date of the adjourned meeting. Changes to entries on the Register of
Members after this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend, speak or vote at the meeting.

Safeland plc

Design: www.energydesignstudio.com

Report & Financial Statements 2018

67

Safeland plc
1a Kingsley Way
London N2 0FW
T: 020 8815 1600
F: 020 8815 1601
www.safeland.co.uk

